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1. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background inform&tion

Tourism Promotion Fund is a government National Public Fund established under section Z4(4) ot
the Pub_lic Finance Managemenr Act, 20r2. through the regar notice No. 24 of 2019,with the mandate
to provide funds to support deveropment. promoti;n and bianding ofthe tourism r""to, in ienya. rne
main sources of revenue include proceeds realized from the Air passenge, s.*i""-.hurg. R.t undInterest from investment ofsurplus funds.

(b) Principal Activities

The Principal activity ofthe Fund is to provide funds to suppon development. promotion and brandingof the tourism sector in Kenya.

Our Vision

The ldeal Funding Partner for Tourism Development

Our Mission

To provide lunds to pubric agencies fot supponing deveropment. promotion and branding ofKenya.stourism sector to enhance destination competitiveness.

The function and purpose of the Fund shall be:
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Financing development, promotion and branding programmes and initiatives in relation totourism products including tourism niche prodr.i, und"tol.,rir, .r"n,r,
Financing marketing. promotion and branding or renya 

-in 
specific rocar, regionar andinternational market segments;

Financing tourism data capture. anarysis and dissem ination of the same and any other reratedresearch which may include deployment of technology_based applicationsl
Financing deveropment of rourism racirities ,no .rijuririr*nts in areas where the privatesector. is unable or unwiIing to deverop. but with a high potentiar for tourism p.".",i'",,, 

""abranding;
co-financing of tourism deveropment.and promorion projects with the county governmentson the basis ofan agreed ratio of matching grants;
Funding programmes and initiatives rii tor.irm safety and security geared towardsdevelopment, promotion and branding oftourism ,.oo.'-''
Financing development of innovationi and rnr.ntionr-*t i.t, promote tourism deveropment.promotion and branding

lllljy.::,:,.rrging 
projects which conrribute to devetopment. promotion and branding of

Financing programmes and initiatives geared towards tourism inte[igence and informationgathering for purposes ofdevetoping. piomoting 
"iJ[.-u"Jirg ,"rrism in Kenya: andStandards development and capacity- bu ila i"g iritf,l t*riril'r'..,o,

lIr
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(c) Board of Management

The day-to-day management ofthe Fund is entrusted to the Chief Executive Oflicer who is also the

Secretary to the BoarJand Administrator ofthe Fund. The office ofthe CEO is responsible preparing

strategic plans. budgets alrd proposals to the board for approval'

The Fund is managed by ten board members comprising of Seven Covernment representatives' two

independent me.b]ers and the CEO who is the Secretary to the Board. The appointment and the terms

ofthe current membership ofthe Board ofTrustees are as shown below;

(d) Key Management
The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June 2023

and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:
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MembershiNo. Title
ersonChaiCabinet Secreta - Mini of Tourism. Wildlife and HeritI

Member
2 Princi lSecretary - State De rtment for Tourism

MemberPrincipa lSecret - National Treasur3
Mcmber4 Princi urene fot Cf urtmaDeeS ttaSe retac ry
MemberPrincipalSecreta S part fo w d I feIt reD mentate5
Member

6 Principal Secretary - State Department

Administration

for lnterior and National

Member- State De rtment for TranslSecretPrinci rt7
MemberPrivate Sector8
Member

9 Private Sector
SecretarYt0 Chief Executive Officer

NameDesignationNo.

Mr. Stephen KinYanjuiAg. Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Doreen OkoYana Abuti
Ag. Director Programmes Management2

CPA John MakonaAg. Funds ManagerJ

Mwituria John MwitaAg. Corporate & Admin istration Manager4
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(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

The oversight function of corporate governance shall be performed by the Fund,s board ofdirectors
and its designated committees. Boards ofdirectors shall perform their advisory and oversight funcrion
through well-structured. planned. and assigned commitiees to take advantaie of rhe exp?rtise of all
the d irectors.
The board committees addresses relevant issues delegated to them and make recommendations to the
Board for final approval. Alr decisions, however, can onry be made by the oversight Board. Each
committee has terms ofreference approved by the Board and the Chair ofeach aorrn'it,aa is required
to repon on their proceedings at the board meeting immediately following the committee meeting.
These committees include;

i. Project Management Committee

The committee is responsibre for advising the Board on the projects and programmes managemenl.
in accordance with the funding requirements.

ii. Finance, Administration and Corporate Committee.

The committee shall provide advice and assistance to the oversight Board of management and theSecretariat regarding the Fund's financiar Iiduciary and generar finance uragetinll 
"orlorate 

andadministrative duties. The committee shall proviie or""rrigt t with respect 
-to 

tf,e frnlncial andadministrative strategies ad policies ofthe Fund.

iii. Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The a.udit committee shall provide oversight ofthe financial reporting process, the audit process, lheFund's system of internal controls and compliance with laws and regulations and evaluating theeffectiveness of the Fund.

(f) Registered Offices

'fourisnr I'ronrotion Fu nd
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Tourism Fund Building
P.O.BOX 50293- 00100
NAIROBI

(g) Fund Contacts

Telephone: +254 20 440060 I

Emai l.info@to f.qo.ke

(h) Fund Bankers
Kenya Commercial Bank
Kipande House Branch
Kipande Road
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(i) IndependentAuditors

Auditor General
OfTice of the Auditor-General
Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

(j) Principal Legal Adviscr

The Attomey General

State Law Ofiice and Department ofJustice
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401l2
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

I
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2. THEOVERSIGHT BOARD MEMBERS.

Hon. Peninah Malonza, OGWCabinet
Secretary, Tourism, Wildlife and Heritage
Chairperson ofthe Oversight Board

Hon Peninah Malonza, OGW. was born in Kitui South
Sub county.Kitui County in South Easter.n Kenya.

She served as the Depury Govemor of Kitui County, 20 | 3_
2017 where as a member of the County Executive
Management Team. she rnanaged and coordinat.d th"
implementation of both County and National Government
legislation.

Prior to her entry in the public service. She worked in
Development organizations including Compassion
Intcrnarional - Kenya Oftice 2006- 201 j where she rcse to
the position of Partner in Training and Support Director.
She is a graduate of the University ot' Nairobi in
Anth[opology. She also holds two masters. degrees fr.ont
the same instirurion irr public Health and in projeit planning
and Management.

Hon. Peninah Malonza, OCW is currently the Cabinet
Secretary for Tourism, Wildlil'e ad Heritage. She desires to
touch the lives of ordinary Kenyans by uplifting their
Iivelihoods. She is passionate about teamwork. netw-orking
and building srrong relationships with key stakeholders in

Mr , John Lekakeny Ololtuaa
Principal Secretary
State Department of Tourism Vice
Chairperson of the Oversight board/board
Member

an effort to sitivel tm

ideals of strat
professionalis

ct le's lives.

egtc management and high standards of
m, transparency, integrity, and

Mr. John Lekakeny Ololtuaa was born in Kilgoris
District. Trans- mara Wesl Sub County in Nar.ok Couniy.

lle holds a Bachelor of Education (Afts) Degree and a
Master's Degree in Education Administration both tionr
Kenyatta University.

Mr Ololtuaa slatled his public Service career ar.)
educationist in 1993 as an assistanr Teacher. And through
his consistent effon and commitment, he rose through tf,e
ranks to become District Education Oflcer in County
Director of Education and a Regional Director;l
Education in charge of Eastern, Nairobi. Rift Valley.
and Central Regions respectively. He was appointed io
serve in the Transition Authority overseeing the
transition to Devolved system of governance-. He
specifically served as the County Transition
coordinator in charge ofNarok County.

Mr Ololtuaa is a mentor of the youth where he supports
several youth development initiatives across the
country and atransformative leader who believes in the

vrt

accountabilit
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ln 2022. Ololtuaa was appointed as the Pr

ent oftheTourism industry in Kenya.

Secretary in thestate Department of Tourism in the

ministry of Tourism, Wildlife, and Heritage where he

is in charge of Tourism Promotion, policy formulation'

incipal

and Developm

Ms Sylvia M. Muhoro is a Young woman

indigenouscommunity of mukogodo forest in Laikipia

North

Ms. Museiya holds a Bachelors of Law (LL. B) and a

Bachelorsof Education (B.Ed.) from the University of
Nairobit a Diplomain human Rights and lnternational

Advocacy from Colombia University New York School

of Law and she is an alumnus of Young African
Leadership lnitiative (YALI) 2007.

Prior to hel appointment as the Principal Secretary'

State Department for Wildlife, Silvia was a member of
County Assembly (MCA) in the Nairobi City County

Assembly where besides oversighting the Nairobi City

County Covernment she served diligently as the

Chairperson of Education Committee.

She is an author and editor ofvarious publishing houses

such asEast Africa Educational Publishers (EAEP)'

Longhorn Publishers and Law Africa. To that end, she

has published two books with EAEP that are currently

used in Rwanda, Poetry andliterature contributions to

Longhorn Form Four book, and an Elections training

manual by Law Africa

ln 2022, Ms Sylvia Muhoro was appointed as the

Principalsecretary in the State Department of Wildlife
of Tourism. Wildlife. and Herita

from the

in the ministr

Ms Sylvia Museiya Muhoro
Principal Secretary
State Department of WildlifeBoard
Member

I

-d

Ms. Ummi Bashir was born in W

Ummi is an advocate of the high court of Kenya with

I I years of post- admission experience in the field of
Law. She holds a Master'sDegree in armed conflict &
peace from the University of Nairobi, a post-graduate

diploma in Law from Kenya School oflaw and a

Bachelor of Law (LLB) from Zanzibar University'

She is currently pursuing her doctorate (PhD) in

lnternational Relations, Foreign Policy and

Diplomacy at the United States lnternational

University.

She has worked with UNDP-Kenya, UNHCR. in the

office oftheSpecial Envoy for the Horn of Africa, served

as the County Chiefofficer in the Department of Public

ajir County, Ms

Service and Labour in W traPS, Ummi M. BashirMember

t
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Mr. George Kihara Gichuru
A Iternate Board representative
for Principal Secretary of
National Treasury

Mr. Ceorge Kihara Cichuru holds a Bachelor of Commerce
(Accounting) and a Master of Business Administration
(Finance) both t'ronr The University of Nairobi.

He is a Certified Public Accountant ofKenya and a member of:
Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya (lCpAK) and
Institute of Cenified Financial Analysis (ICFA).

He has over 25 years ofexperience as an Accountant in the Civil
Service and is currently a Senior Deputy Accountant Ceneral
and Head ofAccounts Unit at the National Treasurv. previouslv
he served as Head of Accounts Unit at the'n,Iinisn.y of
Environment and Forestry. Ministry of Defense. Ministiy of
Public Works and Ministry of Industrializat ion. He has also
served as a District Accountant in District Treasuries of
Mombasa. Meru North and Naivasha.

Mr. George Kihara Gichuru was once an Alternate Director of
Higher Education Loans Board (HELB) and Alrernate Council
Member of Kenyatta University.

\i
.,
,

rnment and also as the Head of Legal and advisor
or in Mombasa County Covernment.

ln 2022, Ms Urnmi Bashir was appo
Secretary in the State Departmenr of Cu
Ministry of Tourism. Wildlife. and Herit

inted as the Principal
Iture & Heritage in the
age

County Gove
to the Govern

Mr. Paul Famba, OGW
Alternate Board representative
for Principal Secretary; State
Department of lnterior and
National Administration

Director of Administration. Ministrv of
inistration. He holds a Bachelor of Arts

Degree fronr the University of Nairobi and a Masters of Arts
Degree from Kenyatta University. He has served in Covernment
as an administrative officer for over twenty years.

Mr. Paul Famba. OCW.
Interior and National Adm

tx
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Mr. Nicholas Bodo holds a Baclrelor of Arts degree

University. India and a Master of Business Administration from

Laikipia UniversitY.

He is a Certified Public Secretary (K) and holds a Graduate

Diploma in Aviation Management from the National University of

Singapore and the Singapore Aviation Academy and a Certificate

in Air Law from the Egyptian Aviation Academy' Stafted his

career as an Administrator as an Assistant Secretary III and rose

through the ranks to Senior Assistant Secretary before changing

profession to become Chiel Air Transport Officer' He is currently

Director, Air Transport, State Department of Transport, Ministry

of Roads and Transport.

from Osmania

Mr. Nicholas Bodo
A ltcrnats Board rcprcscntativc

for Principal Secretary, State

Department of TransPon

Mr Stephen Mungai Kinyanjui holds a Bachelors of Arts

(Economics and Mathematics) from the Egerton University a-nd a

Master of F-conomics (Policy and Management) degree from

Kenyatta U niversity

He holds professional qualification in statistical analysis on social

inclusive indicator from the Japan Statistical Insthute for Asia &

Pacific and Strategic Planning and Management skills from the he

Eastern and Southern African Managelnent Institute (ESAMI)'

and certificatiorl of Strategic Leadership and Development

Program from the Kenya School ofGovernment He is a member

ofthe Economic SocietY of KenYa

Mr Kinyanjui, has a public service career ofover l4 years, having

as a HJman Resourie Management Officer' and later joining the

Economist profession, under the State Department of Economic

Planning and posted to the State Department of Tourism' He is

currentlt the Ag. Chief Executive Officer, administrator of the

Fund and the Secretary of the Oversight board

Mr. Stephen KinYan jui
Secretary to the Board

x
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3. MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Mwituria John Mwita is a Tourism Officer. He has worked in the
Ministry ofTourism as a Tourism Officer and in the State Depa(ment forwi ldlife as a Wildlife Officer
Mr. Mwituria holds a BSc in Hospitality and Tourism Management, Certificate
in Senior Management Course and Straiegic Leadership O"r?lop..nt Courr.
from Kenya School ofCovernment.

Mr. Stephen
Kinyanjui
Ag.CEO

Mr Stephen Mungai Kinyanjui
Mathematics) lrom the Egerron U
and Management) degree from Ke

holds a Bachelors of Arts (Economics and
niversity and a Master of Economics (policy
nyatta University

He.holds prolessional qualification in statistical anarysis on sociar incrusive
indicator from the Japan Statisticar lnstiture for Asia & pacific and Strategic
Planning and Management skils from the he Eastern and Southern Afriin
Management lnsrirute (Arusha). and certification of Strategic Leadership and
Development Program from the Kenya School ofGovernmeit

Ms. Doreen
Okoyana
Abuti
Ag. Director
Programmes
Management. Ms. Okoyana, has a public service career ofover 4 years, havingjoined the

Economics profession under the State Department of Nationai planning
and posted ro the Minisrry of Tourism. Wildlife and Heritage. StatI
Department of Tourism.

fi
fro
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CPA John
Makona
Ag. Director
Fund

Management Mr. Makona holds a Bachelor of Business Administration (Accounting and
Finance) and other professional qualifications including Certified public
Accountants of Kenya Certificate (CpA (K), programme Ferformance Based
Budgeting, Financial change and Risk Managerient in pubric Sector from
Eastern and Southern African Management 

'institute 
(Arusha) as well as

Certificate in Senior Management Course from Kenya School ofCovernment.
Makona is also a member of the Institute of Certified pubric Accountants of
Kenya (ICPAK)

Mr. John Makona h
over l3 years having j
Ministry of Finance.

as worked as a Finance Office
oined the Civil Service in the y

r ln various Ministries for
ear 2010 under the Former

Mwituria John
Mwita
Ag. Director
Corporate &
Administration

xl
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4. CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

It is my pleasure to presenl the Tourism Prornotion Fund 202212023 Annual Report and Financial

Statements. This annual repon helps us to reflect on our perfbrmance for the year giving us an

opportunity to celebrate our success and at the same time identify areas of improvement. The Fund is

one of the agencies in the Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and Heritage operationalized in 2019. This

financial report for the year ended 3Otr' June, 2023 is the 4th repon for the Fund since inception.

During the year. all Board Committees were functional. As the Chair, I am proud to report that the

BoarJcommittees have been discharging their mandates appropriately by making informed decisions

contributing to the overall performance ofthe fund.

During the budget period under review. FY 2Ol9l2O2O -202212023, the cumulative revenue receipts

stood-ar Kstr.slT 97,47g,207 while the cumulative expenditure stood at Kshs.4,167,033,952. The

revenue receipts were Kshs.1,506,255,594. Kshs.765,830,958,Ksh.1,203,004'827, and Kshs.

2,,322,387,82a while the expenditure was Kshs.317.675.967. Kshs'918,774'863'
(shs.1,466,115,508 and Kshs.1,464,467,614 for the FYs 201912020,20201202t,202112022 and

2022 I 2023 respecti vel Y.

The key projected activities for the Fund for the FY 202212023 included financing various

prograrnsi projects, Ten (10) projects were lunded to a tune of Kenya shillings one Billion' Three

kuia."o'rrn"nty Eight Million, Eight Hundred Thirty Three Thousand, Six Hundred Sixty

one (Kshs.l,32S,SSS,OO I ). lt',s also irnponant to note that since inception, FY 201912020 to FY

202212023. a total of Twenty (20) projects have been funded to the tune of Kenya shillings Three

Billion, Eight Hundred Thirty seven Million, Seven Hundred Thirty Five Thousand' Eight

Hundred Twenty Three (Kshs.3,837'735'E23).

ln addition to the above achievements, TPF Oversight Board has a secretariat that assists in its

operutionr. The secretariat is mandated to ensure that all the activities of the Fund are well

coordinated. The Fund has developed a service delivery charter. website and social media handles for

effective communication and publicity for brand visibility. Similarly, the Fund has created.a\'rr'areness

by sensitizing Tourism implimenting Agencies Officers and other stakeholders, establishment of

various infrastructural and operatio;al facilities to suppon the Fund Operations i.e. Fnterprise

Resource Planning System (EiPl and through collaboration with the Counties in the Tourism Sector

on disbursement of funds.

TPF endeavors to strengthen collaboration and partnership amongst the stakeholders that vvill boost

development, promoti;n and branding of Kenya's tourism sector to enhance destination

com pet it iveness.

Finally. to our esteemed stakeholders, I am most grateful to your continued encouragement and

unwavering support during the year.

Hon. Peninah Malonza, OGW
Cabinet Secretary for Tourism. Wildlife and Heritage

Chairperson of the Oversight Board

xll
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5. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Tourism Promotion Fund Annual Report highlights the overall performance of the Fund towardsdisbursement of funds to the proiected activities ;irh the aim of promoting Tourism Seftor in tutting its
mandate._l am delighted 10 repon that rhe Financial Year'2022/2023 was the 4fr Fin;;iai y.u, orop.rurion ro|.Tourism Promotion Fund with the aim o^fachieving the organizational Strategic objectives. I wish to appreciatethe etrorts and support of the Board of Directors as wei as the Fund Secritariat" for their tremendous efforttowards achieving the Fund's objectives.

The.Funds budget during the year was set at Kshs.3,040,227,000 this was as a result ofthe improving globaltourism performance. Due to this positive development, it became necessary that the Fund revise the budget toreflect the actual expected Air Passenger Service char:ge to be transferrei to the Fund n.om renya Rirpo,rsAuthoritv. The actuar revenue rearized during the Fy-under r."i"; ;ur i;;.l-,il,il;,dii;;prising ofretained funds B/F from FY 202)r-20_'t?.-of 
-xshs.zzl,soo,ooo, 

rnreresr from investment of Kshs.27,057,964and rcceipts from KAA of Ksh S.Z,3ZZ,3E7,EZE.

The total expenditure during the Financiar year amounted to Kshs.1,464,467,6r 4 (Refer to pg. 6 & 7_Actuaron compalable 
.basis) as compared to the expenditure in Fy ZLZltZOZi of'Xsfrs.f ,,fee,iiS)ie. fli, *u,approximately 487o expenditure, of the total approved budget. The operational expenses expenditure was up-to a tune of Kshs.l35, 633,953. These operaiional expeises included adminisrmtion 

"na 
otr,er- op.r"tingexpenses' Remuneration of directors, a^cquisition of Propeny as well as use ofgoods and Ser.viles. The CoreMandate expenditure was IGhs.l, J2g,g33,661.

The projects/Programmes thar were funded were; Ongoing Construction of RNUC_TF _Kshs.500,000,000;
Classification an!_Clad]ng of Class A & B Ent-erpr-ises_TRA_Kshs.48,547,500; Refurbishment &Renovation of wRTr Sanctuary & conference Facirities-wRTl-xstrs.sl,zts,sls; n"r"ur.t onEstabrishment of the rmpact orcrimate Change on Tourism in the country ani De;ig;;iA;propriateClimate Response and Susrainabre practices project-TRI-Kshs.43,631,296; fr.errabiiitation ofFountains-KICC -26,667,762: Modernizatiorr & itefurbishmenl of Tsavo Balrroom-KICC-
Kshs' 173'332'238; Rehabilitation of Utamaduni Restaurant-BoK-rsrrs.lse ioo,sri; oigiii.ution orCultural Tourism Products- BoK- Kshs.48,434,650; Construction of Kasala Cate Tsavo East NationalP-ark-KWS-Kshs,41,744,0s3; and Equipping of Individuar rraining rit.nln-r<uc-Kshs.250,000,000.

As at 30'r' June 2023, the rotal Net worthy of the Fund amounred to Kshs.l,7l3,760,6gs. This comprised of
ll'9p.,]y-,-P^lu_!t uld Equipment (ppE) of Lshs.40, 6S5,3t 6 and Cash and Cash Equivaieni of 

--
Kshs.1,668,635,534.

Finally' I want to sincerely appreciate all the stakeholders for the continued suppor.t towards achieving theFund's core mandate of deveronmenr. promotion.and brandin! of rorrim secror in Kenya; The Governmentfor continued supporl. the Board fo, stmtegrc vision an;;;;";; ,, we as Kenya Airporrs Aurhority.

Mr. Stephen Kin anjui
Chief Executive Officer
Secretary to the Board

XTIT
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6. STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY 202212023

Tourism promotion Fund has 4 strategic pillars and objectives within its Strategic Plan tbr the FY 2021122 - 2025/26 These strategic pillars are as

follows:

Pillar l:
Pillar 2:
Pillar 3:
Pillar 4:

Resource Mobilization and Management.

Project Funding and Management

Corporate ldentity and Brand Visibility
Fund lnstitutional Strengthening & Capacity Building

Tourism promotion Fund develops its annual work plans based on the above 4 pillars. Assessment olthe Board's performance against its annual work

ptun i, aon. on a quarterly basislThe TpF achieved its performance targets set for the FY 202212023 period for its 4 strategic pillars, as indicated in

the diagram below:

AchievementsActivitiesPerformance Indicatorsob ectivec PillarStra

the Oversi ht Board
Eslimates determined and approved by

& expenditure estimates
Prepare/Review annual rcvenueAnnual estimated Revenue and

Expenditure

a roved by the Oversi
funding were
t Board.

Prioritized projects for
fund in through Board a val
Establish prioritized plojecls forPrioritized projecs

The estimates were approved bY the

Oversight Board and appropriated by The
National Treas

Prepare & Present for Board

Approval the Annual estimates &
Fund Bud

Approved annual estimates &
Fund budget

To establish the

annual revenue and

Expenditure estilnate
of the Fund

Disbursernent of funds was done to Ten
( l0) projects.

Disbursement applovals &
Funds Disbursed

To manage the Fund

Expenditure

TPF participated in rhe 2022/23 FY

budgeting process

Undertake disbursement Process
ofthe Fund (analyze

disbursement tequests, board

applovals, initiate disbursement

of Funds)

Panicipate in the National
Govemment Budget preParation

process as per MTEF Cuidelines

Proposed budget estimate for
funding

To mobilize funding
for Fund Objects &
operation expenses

Pillar l: Resource

Mobilization and

Managentent
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Stra ic Piller ob ective Performance Indicators Activities Achievements

Enterprise Resource Planning
Established Establish and Manage

lntemal Control Systems
An ERP System has been procured and
it's implementation is ongoing.

Risk Management Stratery velop and Implement a Risk
Management Strategy

De A Risk
developed

Management Strategy was

To Control, Monitor
& report on the Fund
Management

Quanerly and Annual financial
reports

pare Fund Financial quarterly
and annual reports

Pre The FY 202212023 reports prepared and
submitted to OAG & The National
Treasury. The quarterly reports prepared
and subnritted.To Establish/

Review plojects
and programs for
Funding

eport on Funding application
request and analysis
R Analyze Tourism Implementing

agencies Projects and Programs
application for Funding.

Criteria for Funding Application
developed. The Proposed projects
analyzed in line with set criteria.

To conduct
sensitization on
project and program
fundin strate

Report on the Sensitization Undertake sensitization to TIA's
Project management peBonnel on
TPF Funding guidelines and
re lations.

50 Project managers fronr TIAS were
sensitized within the FY

M&Eframeworkreviewed eview Fund M & E frarnework
and guidelines
R The lranrework and guidelines for

M & E done.

Pillar 2: Project
Funding and
Management

To establish and
manaSe
Monitoring,
Evaluation and
Reponing
S tems

onitoring & implernentationM
status reF)rted

Undertake ADHOC, quarterly
and annual monitoring ofthe
funded plojects

Monitoring of the funded projects was
done and the report submitted to the
Oversight Board

Enhance TPF
visibility

Interactive TPF website and
social media platforms

Operational website and social
media platfolrrs

The Fund has an op€rational Website
and active Social media platforrns

Pillar 3 : Corporate
Identity and Brand
Visibility

Conrmunication
strategy and policy

nrplement a conrrnunication
strategli and policy

Communication strategy and policy
irrplemented

Comrnunication strategy
developed and implenrented
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AchievementsActivitiesPerformance Indicatorsob ectivePillarStra TPF- Customer Service Delivery
Charter is under irnplementation

Implement customer Service

Delivery Chaner
Custotner Service DelivctY
Charter implemented

Service excellence

Four (4) Oversight Board nreetings

have been held in the FY
Conduct Board meetingsMinutes

Board Papers
To strengthen the

institutional capacity
ofTPF to deliver on

ils mandate
Finalized TPF grading structure by

SRC
lmplement TPF organizational

structure
Organizational structure
irnplemented

Three Officers have been trained on

SLDP. One OIficer trained Public
relations and Custonrer Care. One
officer tlained on Supervisory Skills
Development Course, Three oflicers
have been trained on Senior
Management Course, Three officers
trained under ICPAK

Facilitate training of cornpulsory
progression training couses for
ofTi cers

Report on training and caPacitY

Building

HR Plarrning and

managernent

Performance Contract developed,

cascaded and evaluated.
Develop and cascade

Perfonnance Contract (PC)
Performance Contract
managenlent Repofis

The Fund collaboratively undertook
audir of the FY202l/22 under the

uidance ofthe OAG

U ndertaking AuditsAudit reports

Enhance
Performance
Management

Offi ce facilities procuredAcquirement of office facilities,
equipment, and stalionery

Working tools and equiPment
procured

Provision of
Conducive Working
Environrtent

Pillar 4: Fund
Institutional
Strengthening &
Capacity
Building
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The oversight Board ofTourism Promotion Fund is responsible for the governance ofthe fund and is
accountable to the Government of Kenya in ensuring that it complies with the various laws while
maintaining high ethical standards and corporate goui,nance. Accordingly, the Board attaches very
high impo(ance to the generally accepted corporate governance praciices and has embraced the
internationally developed principles and code ofbest practice ofgood corporate governance includ ing
the Mwongozo Code.

Oversight Board

The roles ofthe Chairman and Board members are distinct and their respective responsibilities clearly
defined within the Legal Notice 

.No 24, dated r2rh Aprir, 20 r9 on the pubric Finance Managemenr
(Tourism Promorion Fund) Regulations. 20 l9_

The Board defines the policy guide.lines for effective management ofthe Fund. Except for direction
and guidance on generar poricy. the Board deregates autiority of its day to day business to the
Secretariat through the Chief Executive Ofljcer (CEO).

Board meetings

Tourism Promotion fund oversight board held 4 (four) full board meetings in the 2022123 Fy.This was
on 23'd Ju ly 2022, lTth Novem bei 2022, I 'r February Z6zS ana 29,h Marci2Oz3

'l'orrrisnr l'ronrotion Fu ntl
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
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Committees of the Board

The Board has set up three (3) key committees to facilitate efficient decision making ofthe Board in
discharging.its duties and responsibirities. These committees incrude erolect vanafem"*, Finun.".
Administration and corporate; and Audit & Risk Managemenr commirte;. one meltint was held in
the FY under review on 29rh July 2022.

Project Management Committee

The committee is responsibre on advising the board on the projects and Fund management. inaccordance with the funding requirements.
The committee is responsible for advising the board on:

l. Advice the board on Annual Revenue & Expenditure Estirnates ofthe Fund.2' Advise the board on the allocations and diibursements of lunds for designated programmes
and projects in accordance with statutory regulations and prouirion otitr. ?*rirrl'iioro,ion
fund regu lations

3. Development, implementalion,. evaruation and reporting on the Fund rnvestment strategy;4. Analysis and evaluation of project proposars for iunding and recommending tt" e.o;".t runarequirement to the board;
5. Establishment of M& E toor kit. Monitoring, evaruation and reporting ofthe funded projects6' Establishment of Tourism intelligence and-trends to supporl the implementation of funded

projects
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7. Development & Establishment of ICT/digital. online application and funding portal for the

fund activities
8. Establishment ofstandards and compliance framework for funded projects in line with current

international tourism trends. Government of Kenya Standards, regulations and processes.

9- Resource mobilisation for the Fund

Finance, Administration and Corporate Committee.

The committee shall provide advice arrd assistance to the Oversight Board and the Secretariat

regarding the Fund's hduciary and general administrative duties. The Committee shall provide

oversighi with respect to the financial and administrative strategies and policies ofthe Fund.

The committee is responsible for advising the board on

l. Board Management's perfotmance and effectiveness
2. Establishment of lund corPoratc tovcrnance structurcs and processes'

3. Development and implementation of the Fund investments strategy

4. Oversight ofthe deposit, management, and investment ofTPF funds, including funds that may

be held in established by TPF for the deposit. holding and/or investment ofTPF funds.

5. provide oversight with respect to the overall financial condition of the Fund and its income

and expenditures; Review and make recommendations to the Board and the secrelariat on

TPF's annual proposed operating budget. work plan, including any proposed material changes

during the year
6. Establish appropriate financial controls and reporting;

Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The audit committee shall provide oversight of the financial reporting process, the audit process, the

Fund's system of internai controls, compliance with laws and regulations and evaluating the

effectiveness of the fund.
The committee is responsible for advising the board oni

l. Development and implementation ofan internal fund risk management strategy

2. Review and make recommendations on the accurate AudiV financial statements and reporting

in compliance with all applicable legal requirements'

3. Development of a compiehensive Audit comrnittee charter and the Internal Audit Department

Charter.
4. Evaluation offunds utilisation and absorption rate by funded agencies'

5. Review and make recommendations on audit issues raised by both internal and external

auditors;
6. lnitiating special audiVinvestigation on any allegations, concerns and complaints regarding

corrupti;n, lack of accountability and transparency in relation to funded projects/programs.

7. The iudit committee is responsible for the appointment. compensation and oversight ofthe

work of the auditor.
8. Make submissions to the board on any matters concerning the accounting policies, financial

controls, accounting records and reporting.
g. Perform any other oversight functions required by the Oversight board'
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Succession plan

The fund has in place a remuneration str.ucture and the job evaluation grading structure approved by
SRC and under implementation. This will in turn inform succession planningl

Board Charter

The Charter was developed and approved by board. lt is under implementation.

Appointment and Removal of Directors

A person appointed as a Board Member/Director shall serve for a period of three (3) years. and theperiod may be renewed for a further final term ofthree (3) years

Roles and Functions of the Board

There is an established board known as oversight Board for the Fund whose functions will be:

i. To advise the Cabinet Secretary on the funding requirements ofthe Fund:ii. To review and adopt the estimates of anniar ievenue and expenditure of the Fund and
recommend them to the Cabinet Secretary for the lime being responsible fo, .utt"r. relating to
tourism for concurrence and onward transmission to the Ca6inet'secretarv m, upprorur,iii. To determine the arrocation of financiar resources from the Fund required [i tn. tnrri*implementing agencies for the development, promotion and branding of touris, sector in
Kenya;

iv' To ensure that the annual estimates of revenue and expenditure for the Fund include retention
funds for the preceding financial year which shall be relvotedlv' To ensure that-onry projects incruded in the tourism imprementing agency annuar programme

. are promoted for funding under these Regulations;
vi' to advise the Cabinet secretary on 

"rounts 
and timing for the fund transfers into the Fund;vii. to approve and review the investment ofsurplus fundifrom the Fund;viii' to advise the cabinet secretary on any additionar sources of funds ror the Fund;ix' toapprovethe financial statements prepared by the Admin istrator of the Fund before subm issionto the Auditor Generali and

x' to approve the non0financial reports ofthe Fund before subm irting them totheCabinet Secretaryresponsible for tourism for onward transmission to the National ir"u.rry

Induction and Training

The Tourism Promotion Fund llumln Resource poricy and Manuar was deveroped and underimplementation' The induction and training ofBor.a ,"#u"^ and staff was conducted under varioustraining sessions in the financial year 2OZitZ023.
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rd Remuneration
t

PF

and Conduct as well es Governance Audit

e TPF Board is in its 4s year ofoperation and has been audited and complied with the advisory of
e Covernance Audit and regulations.

received approval from Salaries and Remunerations Commission on remuneration and it has

compensating board members as per the recommendations ofthe SRC
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8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

8)

The Tourism Promotion Fund has continued with its mandate of providing funds to suppon
development, promotion and branding oftourism sector in line with Legal Notic-e No 24, dated l2th
April,2019 on the Public Finance Management (Tourism promotion Fuid; Regulations, i019.

operational end Financial performance of the Fund during the period under review Fy
(20 t 9 / 2020 -2022 t 2023)

Duringthe budget period und"I-r:ri"^y1IlF cumurative expenditure stood at Kshs.4, 167,033,952.
ThisbeingKshs.3rj,67s,967,Kshs.9rg,774,E63,Kshs. l,466,lls,508andKshs. t,lii,lil,,nan,
the FYs 2019/2020'2020/2021,2021/2022 and2.022/2023 respectively. Expenditure is iilustratea inthe Charts below;

Budget Vs Actual Expenditure
Budget perforn.r a nc e Fy 2AIg/2O2O

=
\

I

l._l

As indicated in the chart above, 
1!e- 1ryat budget had initially been set at Kshs.2,427,000,000, thiswas revised down to Kshs.2,064,000,000 while the ennuailxpenditure srood at Kshs.3 r 7,675,967wLtich-was l57o ofthe approved budget. The expenaiture unaer ttre operational Allocation was Kshs.17,675,967 while the expenditure on Core Mandate was Xstr1. 3OO,OOO,OOO.
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Budget Performance FY 2O2Ol2O2L

perational Allocation was Kshs. 122213,346 whi

43,902,162.

{

LSll.llrr'

a irl a,ir I

x3h.24464

Ksh.1.7328

Ksh.1.4668

AnnualBudget Approved Budget ActualExP.

r the FY 202112022, as indicated in the chart above, the annual budget had initially been set at

hs. 1,731,672'000 th is was revised upwards to Kshs. 2,445'56 1,000 while the Annua I expenditure

ood at Kshs' 1,466'1 15,408 which was 607o of the approved budget. The exPenditurc under the

r the FY 202012021, u indicated in the chart above, the annual budget had initiatly been set at

99, 523,000 this was revised down to Kshs. 1,998,944,000 while the Annual expenditure

ood at Kshs.918' 213'431 which was 45.96% of the approved budget' The expendi ture under the

perational Altocation was Kshs. 53,213'431 while the expenditure on Core Mandate was Kshs.

,0oo,0oo.

Budget Performance FY 2O2U2O22
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Budget Performance FY 202212023

Ksh.3.OaOB K5h.3.(N08
I

.c

o Ksh.1.4648

0

Annual Budget Approved Budget Actual Exp.
Similary, as indicated in the chart above, the annual budget was set at Kshs.3,040 ,227,000 while theAnnual expenditure stood at Kshs. 1,464,467,614 which-was 4g% 

"f 
th;;pp;;"; bil;;.

During the year under review, the expenditure under the Operational Allocation was Kshs.135,633,953 while the expenditure on Coie Mandate was Kshs. 1,b2g,g33,661.

b) 
^Key 

projectsProgrammes or investments funding decision for the budget period Fys201912020 to 2022n023

i) Revamping of Nairobi Nationat park (Kshs. 300,000,000)

Kenya wildlife Service applied f9r fydl to revamp and rehabilitate Nairobi National park. Thespecific activities to be unde(ake by KWS with TpF funding in the NNp ,*r.. piuirJ incrudedrehabilitation of Roeds (58 Kms in the parrq with various tasks such as Engineering Survey andInvestigation ofthe roads identiJie.d, A^lignment and pavement d€signs, drainage and struature designs,construction of circuit No. r (Simba) 0 l9 Kms, conitruction of circuit No. 2 & 3 (Mbuni & chui)023Kms, construction of circuit No. 4 (Twiga) 016 lims.(Topographicar'il;;; Detairedtopographical survey for existing facirities flor upgrading. rne ortpui*iii u" ir," irpil'r"a uirito,experience, numbers and NNp revenue.

ii) Ronatd Ngata Urrtii Coilege (Kshs. 1,500,000,000)

Tourism Fund appried for Kshs. 1,500,000,000 to go towards the compretion ofthis project and thesame was approved bv Tourism.proloti_o-1 fllq ovirsight Board ana ttre National i.Lr'rry. ourirgthe FY 2020/202r and Fy 2o2r/2o2z,Fy zozzt2oxi;riir- p.orotion rrna ju"" rorrl, nrnaKshs. 800,000,000, and Kshs. 700,000,000 respectiv"ly towarAs this project.
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iii) Tourism War Room (tourism post Covid-I9 recovery Strategy Development) (Kshs.

3s,000,000)

Tourism Research Institute applied for funds under the Tourism War Room (tourism post Covid-
l9 recovery Strategy Development) Project to enable the Tourism Sector develop a comprehensive

strategy to enable it cope with and recover from the ramifications of the pandemic while building
resilience for survival and sustainability in the face ofthis continuing pandemic and similar shocks

in the future. This project was evaluated and approved by the oversight board of management for

both funding and funds disbursemenr. The funds were disbursed in the FY 202012021.

iv) Mitigation of Fires, Afforestation and Environmental Rehabilitation of Tsavo

National Park project (Kshs. 30'000'000)

Kenya wildlife Service applied for funds under the Mitigation of Fires. Afforestation and

Environmental Rehabilitation ofTsavo National Park project. This project was for Rehabilitation and

restoration of degraded areas (Tree planting, Tree nurseries, direct seeding, build encroachers)'

Reduction of inci-dences of Fire (Fire breaks and Security Programs), lncrease Public Awareness

(community engagement and education),Development of capacity to supress fires (training of

marshals). building park-based fire management Capacity (Equipment. fire management plan' M and

gi.f1.i, p.j*, wa! eualuated and approvid by the oversight board of management for both funding

and funds disbursement. The funds were disbursed in the FY 202012021'

v) Domestic Marketing and Fam Trip promotion (Kshs' 100'000'000)

Kenya Tourism Board applied for funds for Domestic Marketing and Fam Trip promotion Project'

This'project was to focus on a conversion-oriented campaign themed around short-breaks to fewer

known d"estinations across the country and encourage year-round travel' The project involves

Jo,n.rti" promotion (flighting on Meiiay, Digital Activation, production of Campaign assets and

ongoi,U u'.t*"ti"n, uroJnd kiy erents in Kenya. This^projecr was evaluated and approved by the

oversight board of manager",it fo, both funding and funis disbursement. The funds were disbursed

in the FY 202012021.

vi) Establishment of water Pans and Dams and drilling of boreholes in the Tsavo National

(Kshs. 199,994'576)

The State Department for wildlife applied for funds towards the Establishment of water Pans and

Dams in the Tsavo National Park. The project involved provision of water in the Tsavo Ecosystem

to last throughout the dry season. Twelve water pans were to be constructed in Tsavo East and

r.u,ow..t-Nutionalparks.Thisprojectwasevaluatedandapprovedbytheoversightboardof
management for both iunding uni f*d, disbursement. The funds were disbursed in the FY

2020t2021.
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viiD Consultancy for WRTI
(Kshs.36,150,380)

Development projects feasibility studies- WRTI-

vii) Research on Cultural Heritage mapping of products and experiences- KU_
(Kshs.9,265,500)

Kenyatta University applied for funds for Research on Cultural Heritage mapping of products and
experiences. This was Consultancy to undertaking cultural and heritage productiand'experiences
capturing; digitized mapping of cultural and heritage tourism resources in Kenyal and developing
story maps for Kenya's cultural tourism products and experiences. This project was evaluated and
approved by the oversight board ofmanagement for both firnding and funds disbursement. ihe funds
were disbursed in the FY 2020/2021 .

wildlife Resea-rch rraining Institute appried for funds under Consurtancy to undertake pre-feasibility.and feasibility analysis offive (i) capital projecrs for developmeni witJLire [esearc1and.Training Institute Project. This project was Consu-rtancy to undertake pre- feasibirity and
feasibility an_alysis of five (5) capitar projects. They incrude wRTr comprex at tne Heaafua.ters,
Naivasha; Inland waters and wetrands Research Centre in Naivasha; Thesavanna, Arid an! semi-arid Research cenlre in Tsavo: Montane/forest research Centre in King'ong'o Ny.ri; unJ.ourt.t
and Marine research Centre in Malindi. This project was evaruated and approved by the oversight
board of management for both funding and fundls disbursement. The funds were disbursed in theFY 2020/202t.

ix) Extension of the
(Kshs.173,702,292)

Runway and Apron at Ukunda Airstrip in Diani_ KAA-

Kenya Airports Authority applied for funds under the above-named project towards Extension ofthe Runway from l 2 km to I .4km.-Expansion ofthe apron to allow for additional rhree code-c aircraftparking at Diani-Kwale County. The application was received and evaluated in Fy 202117022. Thiswas^approved by the oversight board for funding and disbursement. The funds were disbursed in theFY 202v2022

x) Digitization of corrections at the Nationar Museums of Kenya- NMK- (Kshs. s6,2gr,440)

National Museums of Kenya applied for funds under the Digitization of collections project withthe.concept being Digitizing & establishment ot'a mobile application lor cultural and artefacrscollecrions to enable the preservarion of Materiars }ris pqlt was evaruared and approved by theoversight board of management for both funding and furids'Jisbursement. The funds were disbursedin the FY 2021t2022.

xi) Development of the visitor Information centre at the Maktau wwl Heritage NationalMuseum -NMK- (Kshs. 6g,,497,g7 4)

National Museums of Kenva applied for funds under the Development of the Visitor Informationcenrre ar the Makrau wwr ieritage Nationar M;;;r; p;;;,. The project enraired Docurnenration

xxv



'l ourisnr l'rontotiott I"u tttl
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30th ,Iune, 2023

and restoratiol of Taita Taveta WWl, construclion of PWD compliant ablution block, visitor

information centre and exhibition, interpretation and promotional materials as well as Development

of marketing and promotional materials of WWI Heritage monuments. This project was evaluated

and approvet by the oversight board of management for both funding and funds disbursement- The

funds were disbursed in the FY 202112022.

xii) classification and Grading of Class A and B Hospitality Enterprises Project-TRA-
(Kshs. 48,547'500)

Tourism Regulatory Authority applied for t'unds under the Classification and Crading of Class A

and B Hospitality Enterprises Project through consultancy seryices to coordinate assessment &

accreditation of blass A and B Hospitality Enterprises and delivery ofaccreditation plaques &

certificates to the audited facilities. This iroject *as evaluated and approved by the oversight board

of management for both funding and funds disbursement. The funds were disbursed in the FY

2022t2023.

xiii) Ronald Ngala Utalii College- (Kshs. 500,000'000)

Toursim Fund applie-d for funds towaids completion ofthe ongoing construction ofRonald Ngala

Utalii College project. This project was evaluaied and approved by the oversight board of

,runug.n,'.ni for both funding and funds disbursement. The funds were disbursed in the FY

202212023.

xiv) Refurbishment and Renovation of wRTI Sanctuary and conference facilities

Project- wRTI- (Ksh. 59'715'595)

wildlife Research Training Institute applied for funds to procure consultancy services for the

project of refurbishment anJrenovation oithe WRTI sa.ctuary and conference facilities.' This

proj.., *u, evaluated and approved by the oversight !91t!-91'"nug"ment 
for both funding and

funls disbursement. The funds were disbursed in the FY 202212023 '

xv)ResearchonEstablishmentoflmpactofC]imateChangeofTourismintheCountry
and Design of appropriate Climaie Response and Sustainable Practices- TRI-

(Kshs.43'831'296)
Tourism Research Institute applied for funds fbr situational arralysis on adoption ofsustainable

u* pru",i""., evaluate the impact of climate change on the.Tourism Sector in Kenya and Design

appropriate climate response and sustainable best fractices in line with global benchmarks' This

piJi"J, *", evaluated and approved by the oversight board-of management for both funding and

iunis disbursement. The funds were disbursed in the FY 2022/2023 '

xvi) Rehabilitation of KICC Fountains- KICC- (Kshs' 26'661'762)

Kenya'I nternational convention c"ntr. applied for funds to undertake rehabilitation ofthe Klcc

i'or',iui". to improve the ambience and beauiy of KICC, moderate the climate around the Centre by

irpro"lrg frrn-,iOity and providing a place foi delegates to network and have a break from meeting

r",irr. ifri, pr".ject *as eualrat.iand approved bi the oversight b9a{ 9l Tlllcement for both

iunJing una iunis disbursemenr. The funds were disbursed in the FY 202212023.

T
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xvii) Rehabilitation of Utamaduni Restaurant- Bomas of Kenya- (Kshs. 136'560'567)

Bomas of Kenya applied for iunds for the rehabilitation of Utamaduni Restaurant project. The

project entails renovation ofthe kitchen area, purchase of new equipment. development of a new

iultural menu and procurement ofaudio visual equipment. This project was evaluated and approved

by the oversight board ofmanagement fbr both funding and funds disbursement. The ftlnds were

disbursed in the FY 2022/2023.

xviii) Digitization of Cultural Tourism Products - Bomas of Kenya- (Kshs. 48'434'650)

Bomas of Kenya applied for funds for digitization ofcultural tourism products project. This project

was evaluated and approved by the oversight board ofmanagement for both funding and funds

disbursement. The funds were disbursed in the FY 202212023

xix) Construction of Kasala Gate- KWS- (Kshs. 41,744,053)
Kenya Wildlife Service applied for funds for proposed buildings & associated civil works.

Ceological survey, drilling & equipping ofa borehole at Kasala gate in Tsavo East National Park.

This project was evaluated and approved by the oversight board ofmanagement for both funding

and funds disbursement. The funds were disbursed in the FY 2022/2023

xx) Refurbishment and Modernisation of KICC Ballroom- KICC- (Kshs. 173'332'238)
Kenya International Convention Centre applied for funds to undertake modernization and

refurbishment to ofthe fountains to enhance the Centre's competiveness in international platform

and effectivess in executing its mandate. This project was evaluated and approved by the oversight

board of management for both funding and furrds disbursement. The funds were disbursed in the FY

2022t2023

xxi) Equip the Individual Training Kitchen- KUC- (Kshs. 250,000,000)
Kenya Utalii College applied for funds towards equipping of the Individual Training Kitchen (lTK)
laboratory. The project entails purchase and installation ofequipment. solar panel, generator, gas

cylinder, cold room and water tanks. This project was evaluated and approved by the oversight
board ofmanagement for both funding and funds disbursement. The funds were disbursed in the FY
202212023

xxii) KeyOperationalachievements
As part of its operationalization activities within the period under review. the Furrd has created

awareness by sensitizing Tourism implementing Agencies Officers and other stakeholders.

establishment ofvarious infrastructural and operational facilities to support the Fund Operations.

c) Funds Compliance with Statutory Requirements
During the period under review. (he fund complied with all statutory requirements in line with the

PFM Act and the National Treasury circulars with regards to the following reports, budget estimates.

quarterly financial statements and annual financial statements. ln addition to the above all. the

statutory deductions were effected and timely submitted to relevant bodies.
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d) Major Risks Fecing the Organiz8tion

) Mrterial Arreers in Statutory/Financial Obligations

b
e fund during the period under review did not have any material statutory arrcars and financial
ligations.

t
Risk Cetegory Mitigation

Low intake offunds
due to low awareness

Medium reate awareness among stakeholders on the roles oftheC
Fund

Conflict of Interest Low Increased awareness crcation on the roles ofthe Fund

xx
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9. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

This consist ofall components both internal and external that have had an impact on the performance
ofTourism Promotion Fund. The mandate ofTourism Promotion Fund is to provide funds to support
development, promotion and branding of tourism sector. Below is an outline of the organization's
policies and activities that promote susrainability;

i) Sustainability Strategy and Profile

TPF has integrated economic, environmental and social aims into the Fund's goals, activities and
planning with the aim ofcreating long{erm value for the Fund, its stakeholders and the wider society.
During the year in review the Fund activities were geared towards providing excellent services to its
stakeholders- The accounting officer took the necessary measures to mitigate sustainability as
explained below under environmental performance.

ii) Environmental performance

Tourism Promotion Fund is committed to ensure it has provided conducive environment for its
stakeholders (internal and external). The fund has ensured this by acquiring facilities including office
space, furniture's and equipment's for officers. The Fund has also provided good platforms ie.
Website from where the stakeholders can access the Fund's information. It is also in the process of
developing an ERP (Enterprise Resource Program) system where clients and staffcan access services
in one platform. This is for efficiency and monitoring purposes ofthe programs by stakeholders

iii) Employee welfare

The Fund drafted career guidelines that were forwarded to SRC for job grading structure and
evaluation. The approval was granled in August 2022 and the process off implementation is ongoing.
Tourism Promotion Fund has also designed programs including training and induction which are
going to benefit the employees and assist in staff growth.

iv) Market place practices;

As a funding agency, the Fund has been undertaking several initiatives to achieve market place
practices, e.g undertaking adverts through social portals and website

a) Responsiblecompetition practice.

The Fund has ensured that there is fairness in its activities by ensuring fairness in allocation of funds
and the way funds are utilized. A clear funding and disbursement criteria has been formulated to guide
the tourism implementing agencies follow when doing their applications to ensure fairness in
d istribution of funds.
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b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations

The Fund did a prequalification ofsuppliers and has a bank ofsuppliers for various commodities and
services. lt is from this list whereby the supplies chain management uses for procurement. The Fund
has maintained good relationship with suppliers, as per the FY 2022/2023 the Fund had no pending
bills.
The Fund is committed to follow the procurement regulations, through the criteria laid down the Fund
ensured that it funds projects which are going to have an impact in the tourism sector.

Responsible marketing end advertisement
The Fund marketing practices and advertisements were done responsibly following the government
laid guidelines both online and print media.

Product stewardship
Tl.re Fund has ensured that tourism product development is done and information passed to thc
stakeholders and availing funding to the implementing agencies.

t
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IO. REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
June 30,2023. which show the state ofthe TPF affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the entity arel

.

I

lv,

vl l.

vltl

tx.

Finance development, promotion and branding programmes and initiatives in relation to
tourism products including tourism niche products and tourism eventsi
Finance marketing, promotion and branding of Kenya in specific local, regional and
international market segments:
Finance tourism data capture. analysis and dissemination of the same and any other related
research which may include deployment of technology-based applications;
Finance development oftourism facilities and establishments in areas where the private sector
is unable or unwilling to develop. but with a high potential for tourism promotion and
branding;
Co-financing of tourism development and promotion projects with the county governments
on the basis ofan agreed ratio of matching granls;
Fund programmes and initiatives for tourism safety and security geared towards development.
promotion and branding oftourism sectorl
Finance development of innovations and inventions which promote tourism development.
promotion and branding
Funding of plugging projects which contribute to development, promotion and branding of
tourism sector
Finance programmes and initiatives geared towards tourism intelligence and information
gathering for purposes ofdeveloping, promoting and branding tourism in Kenya; and
Standards development and capacity building in the tourism sectorx

Results

The results ofthe entity for the year ended June 30.2023 are set out as outlined in the ChiefExecutive
Report on Page (xiii) of this document.

Directors

During the FY 2022/23 a new Oversight Board was constituted whose members are shown on page
(vii-x).

Surplus Remission

In accordance with Section 219 (2) ofthe Public Financial Management Act regulations. regulatory
entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund. ninety per centum of its surplus funds reported in the
audited financial statements after the end of each financial year. However according to Tourism

xxxt



ourism Promotion Fund
nnurl Reports and Financial Stetements
or the Year ended 30th June.2023

romotion Fund regulations Sec. 8, 'Itc earnings olor occruals to the Fund shall be retained in
e Fund, and shall be spent only for the objects and purposesfor which the Fund is established".
uditors

e Oflice of Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit ofthe Tourism Promotion Fund
accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

t
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I I, STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 8l ofthe Public Finance Management Act. 2012 andTourism promotion Fund Regulation20 19, regulation 3 I requires the Board to prepare financial sratements which give a true and fair viewof the state of affairs of rourism promotion Fund at the end of the financiaiy.ai unJ tn. op".utingresults ofthe Tourism Promotion Fund for that year. The Directors are also required to ensure that the

[|il:[Lfil:Xi*:'"0 keeps proper u."ouniirg records which discrose with rea.J*ur. u..rru.y

This responsibility incrudes: oversight on adequate financiar management appointment arrangementsand ensuring that these conrinue io ue errective ,r,'r*gi"r, the reporting period: Approvar andoversighr on proper planning, budget execution. nnun.ing?ri r"poning ofthe fund finance; Approvalon acquirement and safeguarding ofthe Fund assets: oi.""iirn,r," upplicarion ofappropriateaccounr.ingpoliciesl Approving and allociting fund estimates ttri ui. ,.rronuble in the circumsrances; and

*il:::''u 
monitoring, evaruation-una ."po.ting tr',.'rriir^,ion of funding by the imprementing

The Directors accept responsibility for the Tourism Promotion Funds financial statements, which havebeen prepared using appropriate accounring poricies supporteo ol ,*r"".o,i";;;fiIl";jilr.r.r,,and estimates. in conformitv with rnternati"onar il;ri;T;;ccounting Srandards (rpSAS), and inthe manner required by the PFM ect. zo rz. rrre oireci"*"rr. or,r,. opin ion that the Tourism promotionFund's financial statements siv-e a true and fair view olits state transactions during the financial yearended June 30,2023' and iii financial ;"riil;;;'";'#i41,". ,rr" Directors further confirms thecompleteness ofthe accounting records maintained ro. ii" *tity, which have been reried upon in thepreparation of this financiar staremenrs as^we[ as the aaequacy'of iil .^i."" .i'ri,.".1]f0""".,u,control' Nothing has come to the aflention ofthe oi.""to.rlo'ini;"ate that the Tourism promotion Fundwill not remain a going concern for at reast the nerii.,".ir. ,"rrt, from the date ofthis statement.
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Approval of the fi nancial statements

TPF's financial statements were approved by the Board on i 3rh Septem ber 2023and signed on its behalf

'J.

Mr. Steph Ki yanjui
Chief Executive OfTicer
Secretary to the Board

Hon. Peninah Malonza, OGW

!l?i:_"] |1:,:,:.ly for rourism. witdtife &Heritage
L natrperson of-the Board
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

E n h a n.' i n 9,4 c c oun t o b i I i 4'

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON TOURISM PROMOTION FUND FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effecliveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, lransparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide inlemal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efflcient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tourism Promotion Fund set out
on pages 'l lo 23, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2023 statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets,

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Tourbm Promotion Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information rn acrordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Tourism Promotion Fund as at 30 June, 2023, and
of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
the lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accruals basis) and comply with
the Public Finance Management (Tourism Promotion Fund) Regulations, 2019 and the
Public Finance Management Aci., 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. lnaccuracy of Proceeds to be Realized Under Section 3 of the Air Passengers
Service Charge Act

The statement of financial performance reflects proceeds to be realized under Section 3
of the Air Passengers Service Charge Act amounting to Kshs.2,322,387,828 as further
disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements. However, the amount differs with
recomputed Note 5 to the financial statements proceeds amounting to
Kshs.2,329,702,284 resulting in unexplained variance of Kshs.7,314,456. Further, the
proceeds were received from Kenya Airports Authority. However, the statements financial
performance of the Kenya Airports Authority reflected transfers to the Fund amounting to
Kshs.2,015,256,000 resulting to unreconciled variance of Kshs.307,131,828.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of proceeds to be realized under
the air passengers service charge Act amounting to Kshs.2,322,387,828 could not be
confirmed.

2. lnaccuracy in Cash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of financial position reflects cash and cash equivalents amounting to
Kshs.1,668,635,544. The amount includes Dollar bank account balance amounting to
Kshs.1,302,483 ,624 as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements. Review of the
cash books and bank statements revealed that the closing Dollar bank account balance
amounted to USD 10,237,643.56 as at 30 June, 2023. The Dollar balance was converted
to Kenya Shillings at a rate of Kshs.127.94 to a Dollar instead of Central Bank mean
exchange rate of Kshs.140.52 as at 30 June, 2023 or an equivalent of
Kshs.1,438,593,673. This is conhary to Significant Accounting Policy 4e of the financial
statements. Further, resultant variance of Kshs.136,110,049 has not been explained.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of cash and cash equivalents
amounting to Kshs.1,302,483,624 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Tourism Promotion Fund Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements

R€?orl of he Auditor-General on Tourism Promotion Fund /or the year ended 30 June, 2023
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applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified
olrinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects budgeted
expenditure of Kshs.3,040,227,000 against actual expenditure of Kshs.1,464,290,873
resulting to under expenditure of Kshs.1,575,759,386 or 52o/o of the budget.

The under expenditure may have affected implementation of the planned activities of the
Fund.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ol the Constitution, based on the procedures performed,
except for matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and Effectiveness
in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to
my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been applied lawfully
and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Oversight Board Not Fully Constituted

A review of records revealed that contracts of the two members of the Oversight Board
appointed by the Cabinet Secretary had expired in April, 2022 no subsequent
appointments were made. This is contrary to Regulation 14(1)(h) of the Public Finance
Management (Tourism Promotion Fund) Regulations, 2019 which states that there will
be an established Board to be known as Oversight Board forthe Fund which shall consist
of two persons of opposite gender appointed by the Cabinet Secretary responsible for
matters relating to tourism .

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the Public Finance Management
(Tourism Promotion Fund) Regulations, 2019.

2. Staff Acting Beyond Six Months

Review of records revealed that the entire management team were in acting positions for
a period over one year. This is contrary to Section 34(3) of the Public Service Commission
4ct,2017 which states that an officer may be appointed in an acting capacity for a period
of at least thirty days but not exceeding a period of six months. Further, the Fund has

Reporl ofthe Audilor-General on Tourism Promotion Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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incuned expenditure on acting allowance amounting to Kshs.1 ,282,105 which would have
been avoided had the manager been appointed substantively.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the Public Service Commission
Act, 2017.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the review so as to obtain limited
assurance as to whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in
the financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities
that govern them. lbelieve that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the PublicAuditAct,20l5, based on the procedures
performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis of Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit so as to obtain limited assurance as to whether
effective processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Report o/the Auditor-General on Tourism Promotion Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with

relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes anq
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act , 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the Fund's financial statements and audit
of compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) o't the Constitution. My
consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements
caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial
statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material niisstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

Repor, of the Auditor-General on Tourism Promotion Fundfor lhe year ended 30 June, 2023
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those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to sustain
its services.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA
UDITOR-GENE AL

Nairobi

04 March, 2024

S
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13. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

The notes set oul on pages I lo l9 form an integral pdtt ofthese Financial Slatemenls

Mr. Step en lnyanJur
Chief Exe utive Officer

Secretary to the Board

CPA John Makona
Ag. Head of Finance

ICPAK. No. 17796

Hon. Peninah Malonza, OGW
Cabinet Secretary for Tourism

Wildlife & Heriatge

Chairperson of the Board

Notes 2022D023 202y2022
Ksh. Ksh.

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
Proceeds to be realized under section 3 ofthe Air Passengers

Service Charge Act;
5 2,322,381,828 l.r8t.698.150

Govemment Grants

Internally Generated Revenue-lnterest from Call Deposit 6 5,602.089 2l .455.875

Transfers from olher govemments - gifts and services in kind

Total Revenue 2,,327,989,9r7 1,203,154,025

Expenses

Use ofgoods and services 7 98,209,055 76.12t.922
Board Expenses 8 4,080,289 6,53 I .l 65

Depreciation and amoftization expense 9 8,61 9,0 | 3 4, r I 5,556

Personal Emoluments l0 l,6s8,663

Repairs & Maintenance ll 2,058,094 783,822

Contracted Services t2 2,204,491

Grant to lmplementing Agencies (Core Mandate Expenses) r3 | ,328,833,661 I ,343,902,162

Total expenses 1,445,663,283 1,431,454,627

Other gains/(losses )

Surplus/(deficit) for the period/year 882,326,663 (228,300,602)

Net Balance for the year 882,326,663 (228,300,602)

I
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14. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

The noles sel out on pages I to I9form an integral part ofthese Financial Statements

The Financial Statements were approved by the board on l3th Septembe r 2023 and signed on behalf
of the Board of Directors by:

Assets

Cash and Cash E uivalent
Inventories

Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

Mr. Stephe yanlur
Chief Execu lve Officer
Secretary to the Board

CPA John Makona
Ag. Head of Finance
ICPAK. No. 17796

Hon, Peninah Malonza, OGW
Cabinet Secretary for Tourism,
Wildlife & l{eriatge
Chairperson of the Board

2

Notes
2U22D023 2021n022

Ksh Ksh.

Current Assets

l4 r,668,635,s44 326,220,t t5
t5

Call Deposit t7 478,897,142
Total Current Assets 1,668,635,544 805,117,257

Propeny, Plant and Equipment t6 40,655,3 l6 41,t33,628
Intangible Asset t6B 4,469,826
Total Non-Current Assets 45,125,141 41,133,628

I,713,760,685 M6,2s0,885

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Pavables l8 r4,816,833
Unrcmined Tax
Total Current Liebilities 14,816,833

Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities r4,8r6,833

Net Assets 1,713,760,685 E31,434,052

Represented by:
Retention Funds 83 r,434,052 t,0s9,734,,654
Surplus/(deficit) for the period/year 882,326,633 (228,300,602)
Capital Fund 1,713,760,68s 831,434,052
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15. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

The noles sel out on pages I to l9form an integral pafl oflhese Financial Slatements

3

Not€s Ordinary
Share

Capital

Revduetion
Reserve

Fgir Velue
Adjustment

Reserve

Retained
Eernings

Proposed
Dividend CspitrYDevelopment

Grants /Fund

Totrl

As at 0l .07.2021 (128,845,376) l , r 88,580,030 |,059,734,654

Surplus/ Deficit for the Year (228,300,602) (228,300,602)

As at 30.06.2022 (357,14s,978) r,188,5E0,030 831,434,052

As at Ol .07 .2022 (357,145,978) I, t88,580,030 83 1,434,052

Surplus/ Deficit for the Year 882,326,633 882,326,633
As at 30.06.2023 52E 025rE5 1,1E8,sE0,030 1,713,760,6E5
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I6. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 202]

Details Notes

2022n023 202u2022
Ksh. Ksh.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts
Proceeds to be realized under section 3 ofthe Air Passengers Service Charge Act; 5 2,322,387,828 I, t81,698,150
lnterest From Call Deposit 6 5,602,089

Total Receipts 2,321,989,917 1,181,698,1s0

Pflvments
Use ofgoods and services 7 98,209,055 76,t21 ,922
Remunefation of directors 8 4,080,289 6,53 | , r6s
Personal Emoluments t0 1,658,663

Maintenance of oflce Fumiture & Equipment 2,058,094 783,822

Contracted services t2 2,204,491

Crant to lnrplementing Agencies t3 t,328,833,66 r 1,343.902,162

Total Payments I ,437 ,044,253 1,427,,339,071

Net Cash flows from operating activities 890,945,664 (245,640,921)

Cash flows from Investing activities
lnc rease/Decrease in lnventories

lncrease/Decrease in Accounts Payable ( r 4,8 r6,833) I12,453
Interest From Call Deposit l7 2t,455,875
Purchase of Propeny, Plant and Equipment

Intangible Asset

l6 (7,023,262) (38,576,93 r )
168 (s,s87,282)

Call Deposit Account 47 8,897 ,t 42 (2 1,455,875)

Proceeds from sale ofNon- Current Assets

Net Cash flows in Investing activities 451,469,765 (38,503,039)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Bonowing

4
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Annual Reports and Financiat Ststements
For the Year ended 30th June, 2023

The notes set out on pages I to tgform an inlegrut part of these Financial Statements

Mr. Steph Ki an urJ

Chief Executive Offi cer.

Secretary to the Board

CPA John Makona
Ag. Head of Finance

ICPAK. No. 17796

Hon. Peninah Malonza, OG\l
Cabinet Secretary for Tourism. Wildlife & Heritagc
Chairperson of the Board (j

Detrlls Notes

2V22t2M3 2wt2g22
IfuL. K!h-

R t of borrowings
Net Cash flows used in Finenci ng Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cesh and Cash Equivalents 1,342,415,429 (284,t43,960)
Cash and Cash Equivalent at lst July 2022 326,220,1ts 610,364,07s
Cash and Cash Equivalent at 30th June 2023 1,668,63s,s44 326,220,115
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Anrual ileports n rl :Fin'nncialStatcmcnls
F or the Year cnrled 30rr' Junc, 20?3

17. STI\TEMIENT Df COMPARISOI{ OI BUD(;ET r\liD r\CTUAI- AM{)UNTS irOR THI YEr\R EI\DED 30,J{JNE,2023

Itein Original budget Adjustrnents Final budget Actual on comparable
basis

Performanse
differencc

o/o

Utilization

2A2U2023 2022DV23 2V22nV23 2022nU23 2V22n023 F=DtC%

A B C=A+B D E=C-D

Revenue Kshs. Kshs. Kshs. Kshs. Kshs.

Proceeds to be realized
under section 3 ofthe Air
Passengers Service Charge

r.782,870,000

Act
lnterest from Call Deposit 25,000,000

Retention Funds b/f t.232.357.000

0

0

0

1,782.870.000 2,322.387 ,828 (539,s r7.828)

t9.397.9 r r

0

(s20,1 19,917)

l30Yo

22%

100%

25.000,000

t.232.357.000

5.602,089

t,232.357.000

Total income 3,040,227,000 0 3,040,227,000 3,560,346,9t7

Expenses

94%Coods and services 104,649,000 0 t04,649,000 98,209,055 6,439,945

Compensation of employees 15,448,000 0 15,448,000 t,658,663 13,789,337 I loh

Property, Plant and

Equipment
7,050,000 0 7.050.000 7.023.262 26-738 t00%

lntangible Asset 0 0 0 s,s87.282 0

Remuneration of Directors 4,650,000 0 4,650,000

2,200.000

4,080,289 569,7 I I 88%

Maintenance of office
Furniture and equipement

2,200,000 0 2.0s8.094 t4 I ,906 94Yo

Crant to lmplementing
Agencies

2,888,216,000 0 2,888,2 r 6,000 l ,328,833,661 r,559,382,339 460/o

Contracted Services 2,420,000 0 2,420,000 2,204,49t 215,509 9lo/o

Partioning Works t5,594,000 0 15,594,000 t4,636,076 957,924 94o/o

Total expenditure 3,040,227,000 0 3,040,227,000 1,46'4,2m,873 1,575,759J86 48o/o

6
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t

Mr. Steph nyanjui
Officer

c A John Makona
Ag. Head of Finance

ICPAK. No. 17796

Hon. Peninah Malonza, OGW
Cabinet Secretary for Tourism, Wildlife & Heritage

Chairperson of the Board

Chief Executiv
Secretary to the Board
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JTott tisnr l)ronrotion Ftt nrl
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended J0tl' June, 202J

I8. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l. General Information

The Tourism Promotion Fund was established through the National Assembly Delegated duty
to the Cabinet Secretary responsible for Finance under Section 24(4) ofthe Public Finance
Management Act.2012, in June 2016 through introduction ofan additional chargeof US $ l0
for foreign air travel and 100 Shillings for domestic air travel per passenger. The entity is
wholly owned by the Covernment ofKenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The purpose ofthe
Fund is to provide funds to support development. promotion and branding oftourism sector in
Kenya.

The object and purpose ofthe Fund is to provide funds to support development, promotion
and branding oftourism sector.
Without prejudice to the generality of paragraph ( l) above. the Fund shall provide for (Core
Mandate Expenditures);

(a) financing development, promotion and branding programmes and initiatives in
relation to tourism products including tourism niche products and tourism events;

(b) financing marketing, promotion and branding ofKenya in specific local, regional and
international market segments;

(c) financing tourism data capture. analysis and dissemination ofthe same and any other
related research which may include deployment of technology-based applications;

(d) financing development oftourism facilities and establishments in areas where the
private sector is unable or unwilling to develop, but with a high potential for tourism
promotion and branding;

(e) Co-financing oftourism development and promotion projects with the county
governments based on an agreed ratio of matching grants; Object and purpose. 176
Kenya Subsidiary Legislation. 20 l9

(0 funding programmes and initiatives for tourism safety and security geared towards
development, promotion and branding of tourism sectori

(g) financing development of innovations and inventions which promote tourism
development, promotion and branding:

(h) funding ofplugging projects which contribute to development. promotion and
brand ing of tourism sector:

(i) financing programmes and initiatives geared towards tourism intelligence and
information gathering for purposes ofdeveloping, promoting and branding tourism in
Kenya; and

() standards development and capacity building in the tourism sector

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with lnternational Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS) as recommended by The National Treasury and in accordance

with the requirements of the PFM Act 2012 as well as Tourism Promotion Fund Regulations.

8
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Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30th June, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The annual report is prepared under historical cost convention except items of Property, Plant and
Equipment which are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, rounded to the nearest
thousands. Several accounting policies have been adopted in preparation of this Financial Statements
and they have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3. Adoption of New and Revised Standard

i. Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in year 2023

4. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

TPF recognizes revenues from interest on investment when the event occurs and the asset
recognition criteria are met. It is recognized when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the fair value ofthe asset can be
measured reliably.

b) Budget information

The original budget for FY 2022/2023 was appropriated by the National Assembly. Subsequent
revision were made to the approved budget in accordance with specific aapprovals from the
appropriate authorities to make the final budget. The additional appropriations are added to the
original budget by upon receiving the respective approvals in order to ionclude the final budger.
The TPF budget was Kshs.3,040,227,000 in the Fy zoz2-2023 budget following the governing
body's approval. TPF's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actuil iniome and
expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on
accrual basis using a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in rhe statemeni of financial
performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial
statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation
to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and aitual amounts,
prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts.

9



J'l ourisnr l'ronrotiorr I rrrttl
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30'h June, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

c) Property, plant and equipment

Items of Propeny. Plant and Equipment have been measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (historical cost convention). Depreciation
is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less their residual value using the straight-line
method. The following annual rates are used for depreciation of property and equipment:

Property Rate

Motor vehicles l5o/o

Furn iture & Fittings l0o/o

Computers 40o/o

Office Equipment's l0%

Partitioning & Cladding l0%

For this particular statement, the depleciation lras been calculated at the above annual rates.

lfthere is an indication that there has been a significant change in the depreciation rate, useful

life or residue value ofan asset, the depreciation ofthat asset is revised prospectively to reflect
the new expectations.

On disposal. the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the

item sold is recognized in the statement ofcomprehensive income.

d) Inventories

lnventory is measured at the lower ofcost and net realizable value

e) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions during the year that are in the Dollar account are converted into Kenya shillings at

rates (Commercial Bank Rate-KCB) ruling at the transaction dates. Current assets (Cash and

Cash Equivalent) and current liabilities al the statement of financial position date that are

expressed in foreign currencies aretranslated into Kenya Shillings at rates ruling at the

statement of financial position date. The resulting differences from conversion and translation

are dealt with in the statement ofcomprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

f) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand as wellas deposits in bank accounts (three) being

operated by Tourism Promotion Fund. These are the actual Cash balances for the three accounts

as at the end ofthe Financial Year.

l0
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Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30th June, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g) Subsequent events

There have been no events/ activities subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on
the financial statements for the vear ended June 30rh 2023.

5. Transfers from Other Government Entities- (From KAA to TPF)

6. Interest on Call Deposit

This is interest received from Kenya Commercial bank Call deposit Account. This is the interest
accrued as at24.01 2023 when the call deposit investment was recalled.

Description 2022n023 2021D022
Ksh Ksh

Revenue Account
02.08.2022 144,173,339 I 5. I 0.202 t 20,771 ,?19
02.02.2023 298,396,883 05. 1 t .2021 I r 5,168,246
09.06.2023 80,580,544 28.01.2022 98,577,744
15.06.2023 288,979,405 16.05.2072 116,551,313

Dollar Account
USD Erchange Rate

02.08.2022 2,655,566 9 3 I 6,01 2,398 I 5. 10.2021 50,427,502
02.02.2023 3,234,993 125 414,387 ,635 05.11.202r 238,s49.432
19.o5.2023 2,699,0| 138 369,764,s'13 28.0t.2022 265,798,320
15.06.2023 2,981,482 r40 4t7 ,407,507 16.05.2022 275.854.37i
Tot l 2,322,387,828 I,181,698,150

Dete Recelved
2022-2023 2021-2022

Ksh& Kshs.
30.06.2022 2l,455,875
24.0t.2023 5,602,089
Total 5,602,089 21,455,E75

1l



Jl'ourisnr l)ronrotion Fu nrl
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30'h June, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Use ofGoods and Services

Hospitality Supplies and Service 2,196,n2 I,99'1,460

Communication Supplies & Services 944,602 743,789

Printing Advertising & Information Supplies & Services I,210,099 545,000

Office & Ceneral Supplies & Services Accessories for Computers &
Printers

13,215,787 4,637,948

Training Expenses/Seminars and Workshops 5,179,432 5,888,732

Hire of Training Workshop/Retreat Facilities 5,865,5275,2S8, r 36

Bank Charges 178,321 n9,761

Fuel Oil & Lubricants 2,025,000 000299

Rent 5,507,308 5,400,976

Subscriptions 22,400 2t,200

32,622,9UTravel, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances 38,430,391

Provision for Monitoring & Evaluation Expenses & Allowances 5,284,391 4,1 | 9,500

Specialized Equipment's 3, 141,600

Policy Documents& S.P Development 6,026,920 2,369,530

Corporate Branding 2,261,100

Insurance, Ceneral & Motor) 737,856 750,3 l s

Performance & Management Compliance 7,691 ,200 5,s98,640

Audit Fee 2,000,000 r,000,000

Total e8r09,oss 76,12r,922

l2
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Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30th June, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. Board Expenses

9. Depreciation & Amortization Expense

10. Personal Emoluments

This is acting allowance at 20yo ofthe basic salaries

I l. Repairs and Maintenance

12. Contracted Services

8,619,031

6,531,r6s

4,115,556

r,658,663

Descrlption 20nn023 202U2022
Kshs. Kshs.

Board Expenses 4.080.289 6.53 r. r65
Total 4,080,289

2022nff23 2021D022
Kshs. Kshs.

Depreciation Expense 7.50t.574 4,1 I 5.556
mortization Expense l, I 17,456
Total

2022D023 20?In022
Kshss. Kshss.

Personal Emoluments 1,658,663
Total

Description 2022D023 2021n022
Kghs. Kshs

Repair and Maintenance of Laptops 70.000 84.500
Maintenance of Vehicle t.400. t75 699.322
Maintenance of Office Furniture & Equipment 587.9 t9
Total 2,058,094 783,822

2022n023 202y2022Description

Kshs. Kshs.
Contracted Guards & Cleaning Services 534.491
Website Maintenance Contract r,670.000
Total 2,204,491

l3
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Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30't June, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. Grants and Subsidies to Tourism Implementing Agencies
Funds were transferred to the following entities;

14. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Descri;ltion
2A2t2W 2021n0t2

khi. Kshr.
Grants & Subsidies to Tourism Implementing
Agencies
Transfer to Toulism Fund 500,000,000 700,000,000

Transfer to Tourisnr Research Inslitule 43,83 t ,296

Ttansfer to Slate Departrnent fot Wildlife I 99 ,994 ,5'7 6

Transfer to Kenya Tourism Board r 00,000,000

Tmnsfer to Kenyatta University 9,265,s00

Transfer to National Museums of Kenya t24,789,414
Transfer to WRTI 59,7 t 5,595 36,150,380

Transfer to Kenya Airports Authority t73,702,292

Transfer to Tourism Regulalory Authority 48,547,500

Transfer to Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre 26,667,7 62

Transfer to Kenyatta International Convention Centre 173,332,238

Transfer to Kenya Wildlife Service 4t,744,053

Transfer to Bomas of Kenya r 36,560,567

Transfer to Bomas of Kenya 48,4 34,6 5 0

Tmnsfer to Kenya Utalii College 250,000,000

Total 1,328,833,661 1,343,902,162

Cash at Bank
5,210,04316,576,090Operations Account

132,783,074349,5 75,830Revenue Account

188,226,9981.302,483,624Dollar Account
326,220,1151,668,635,544Total

AII the three accounts are held in KCB BANK KIPANDE HOUSE.
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Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30d' June, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. Inventories

Descripfion 2022/2023 2021n022
IGhs. K3h3.

Total

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

LrDd &
Bulldl[8!

Motor
Ychiclcr

Furtrltura
& Fitdqr

Computar!,
TV

OfiicG
Equipmcnt!r

Oflicc
Prrtiniotr iDg
& Claddlng

Totrl

Coct K!h!. Krhs. Kshr. K.chs. Kshs- Kshs.
At 30th June 2020 3,555,621 2,r50.900 755,400 863,510 7 )2s,431
Additions 62 t.400 62 l .400

Disposals

Transfer/Adjustments

At 30th June 2021 3,555,62 t 2,t50,900 755,400 t,484,910 7,946,83r
Depreciation
lmpairment

&

Accumulated as at Ist
luly 2020 44.445 t'|,924 25. 180 7.t96 94.7 45

Change for the year 526.676 ?ti'roa 292.088 t47,111 I .l 79.833
Accumulated as at
30th June 2021 571 . t2l )11 ,1,, 3t't.268 t 54.967 1.274.s78

N BV as et 30th June
2021 3,02E,94s t,937,602 463Jt 2 I,337, t39 6,672,253

Cost At 30th June
2021

3,555,621 2,r s0,900 755,400 |,{E4,9 t0 7,946.E3t

Additions 12.850.000 r0.606.800 3.690.000 r.622.300 9.74 r,03 I 38,576,93t
Disposals

Transfer/Adjustments

At 30lh Junc 2022 r6.40s.62 r 12.757.700 4.445.400 3. t07.2 r0 9.741.03 | 46,s23,762
Depreci{tion &
Impairment
Accumulrted as at
30ah June 2021

57t.l2r 23t .,
22 i r7.t68 t 54.96'7 1,27 4,578

Charge for the year
2021/2021

r,978.968 '145,430 67 t,160 229.606 481.052. 4,11s,556

Accumulated as al
30th June 2022

2.5 5 0.089 976.6s2 986.428 384.573 487.052 5J90,r 34

NBV as at 30th
tune 2022

r3.855.5i2 I t,78 t,048 3.4s6.9',72 2,'722.637 9.253.979 .r r,rJ3,62E

l5



Lrnd &
Buildhgr

Motor
VGthlc.

FurDitur.
& fitti[g!

CoEputcrr,
TV

Ofic
Equipt!.nt"

Oficc
Prrtiniollrg
& Clrddhg

Totrl

$ort IGhr. K!h3. Krhr, K!h.. Krh!. Krh!.
cost At 30th June
2022 t6.405.62 t 12.565,53 t 4.445.400 3.r07.2t0

46,523,162

Additions 123.212 r,648,500 5.251,550 7,023,262

Disposals

Transfer/Adj ustments

Ar 30rh June 2023 t6.405.62 I 27.688.7 43 6.093.900 E,35E,760 53,547,024

Deprecistion &
I f!pairment
Accumulated as at
30th June 2022 2,s50,089 t,467,O44 988.428 3E4,573

5,390,134

Charge for the year
1012/7013

2,460,E43 2.264.088 2.t60.6t2 615,3 | I 7,501,574

Accumulated as at
3oth June 2023

5.0 r0.932 i.73 I,E52 3,149,040 999.EE4 12,t9r,70E

NBv as at 30th
June 2023

| 1.394.689 I 8.956.89 t 2.944.860 7,35 8,876 40,655J16

J'furrrisrrr l'rorrrotiorr Iiurrtl
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended JO't June 2023

This is the total Cost of Propeny, Plant and Equipment where the Cumulative Depreciation at the rates stated

in the Notes sland at Kshs.12, E91,708 Ieaving the Net Book Value at the end ofthe Year at Kshs.40,655Jl6
respectively.

16. B Intangible Asset

D
l

lscription 2022n023 2021n022
Kshs Kshs

Cost

At lst July 2022

Additions 5.587.282

At end of the year 5,587,282

Additions-internal development

At end of the year

Amortization and impairment
At beginning of the year s,587,282

Amortization | .t t7 .456

At end of the year 4,,469,,826

Impairment loss

At end of the year 4.469.826

NBV 4,469,826

l6
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Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30th June, 2023

17. Call Deposit

Deposit 0l .07.2022 478,897,t42 Deposit-01/07/2020 457 ,44t,267
lnterest 5,602.089 Cumulative Interest 25.8.2020

Repayment of Principal Repayment of Principal-
25.8.2020

Call Deposit to Revenue Account (484,499,231) Deposit-25.8.2020

Repayment of Principal Repayment of Pricipal-
29.4.2021

Payment of Interest Payment of Interest-29.4.202 I

Cumulative Interest 30.06.2023 Interest Receivable 30.6.2022 2t,455,875
Call Deposit Closing Balance New Fixed Deposit-30.6.2022 478,897,142
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Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30'h June,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Trade and Other Payables

19. Cash Generated from Operations

DEtails
2022n023 2021D022

Kshs. Kshgs.

Srrplus for the Year 882,326,663 (228,300,602)

Adjusted for;
Depreciation 8,6 t 9,03 I 4,1 15.556

lnterest from Call Deposit (21,45s,87s)

Net cashflow from operations 890,94s,664 (245,,640,921)

(The lolal of this slatemenl ties lo the cash tlow seclion on nel cash flows from/ used in
operalions)

(The total of this stalement lies to the cash flow seclion on net cosh lows from/ used in operations)

20. Financial Risk Management
The organization's overall risk management policies are set out by the Oversight Board and implemented
by Management, and focus on the unpred ictability ofchanges in the operating environment and seek to
minimize the potential adverse effect of such risks on the organisation's performance by setting
acceptable Ievels of risk. The organization has in place set policies that it applies in hedging against
financial risks to a certain limit dependent on the value of the fund. This includes ensuring that
Regulations for disbursement of Funds to the tourism implementing agencies' are strictly adhered to.

These regulations include the requirement that a Tourism lmplementing Agency must meet the funding
Eligibility Criteria; which include verifying that annual work plan is aligned to the strategic plan ofthe
corporation or agency and the medium term plan approved by the governing body ofthe state corporation
or agency and in the case of an infrastructure development project, prepared project designs; plans and
bills ofquantities approved by the governing body; and the requisite regulatory approvals from relevant
government institutions. ln addition, ascertaining that the project to be financed is procured in accordance
with the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 20 I 5 No. 33 of 2015 as well as ensuring that the
project to be financed is included in the approved estimates of revenue and expenditure for the tourism
implementing agency.

State Department for Broadcasting 180,757

Hawaka General Contractors Contractual 5,669,276
Hawaka General Contractors Contractual 8,966,800
Total 14,816,833

IE
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Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30th June,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For Liquidity Risk, which is the risk that Tourism Promotion Fund rnight not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due, the management performs cash flow forecast and monitors rolling forecasts
to ensure the entity has sufficient cash to meet its operational needs. This includes revision of revenue
and expenditure considering the indicators of revenue performance.

21. Related Party Disclosures

Government of Kenva

TPF is fully owned by the Government ofKenya. The Government ofKenya Provides Revenue

(AIA) through KAA to TPF to finance its operations.

22. Capital Commitments

2021n022
Kshs
.000'

Capltal Commitments 2022n023
IGhs
"000,

Destination PR & Digital Communication-Kent ct Tou'isnt Boqrd 100,000

Refurbishment ofCuest house/ Bandas at the KWS parks-Kenva llildlilb Set'vice 20,000

Construction of PWDs compliant toilets at the parks-Ken)'a ll/ildlife Sen,ice r 5,000

Development and rehabilitation of Nairobi safari Walk-Kenyir Wildlife Sen'ice 50,000

50,000
Construction of a perimeter Wall around Wajir Museun-National Museunts of
Kenya

50,000
Aulomation, Signage and construction of lavatories /PWDs compliant toilets at
Fort Jesus Heritage site-Na/ional Musernts of Kutyu
Design, development and implementation of the National Tourism Service
Digital Platform-Srate Depl. for Torrisnt 25,000

Provision of permanent water soulce in the TSAVO NP-Sratc Depr. otll/ildliJit 100,000

FacilitatiorVacquisition of office equipment and Vehicles management and
administration- Stale Dept. fitr Touristn 105.r35

Total 515,135
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For the Year ended 30'h June, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23. Surplus Remission

In accordance with Section 219 (2) ofthe Public Financial Management Act regulations, regulatory
enlities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its surplus funds reponed in the
audited financial statements after the end of each financial year. However according to Tourism
Promotion Fund Regulations Sec. 8, "The earnings of or accruals to the Fund shall be retained in
the Fund, and shall be spenl onl-yfor the objecls and purposes for which lhe Fund is established".

24. Events sfter the Reporting Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

25. Ultimate and Holding Entity

The entity is a Public Fund/State Corporation/ or a Semi-Autonomous Government Agency under the
Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife. lts ultimate parenr is the Government of Kenya.

26. Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs.)
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APPENDIX l: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF PRIOR YEARs ALTDITORS
RECOMMENDATIONS
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Ref. No, on the
external audit
report
(oAG/TPF/202
rn022t(38)

Issue/Observations from Auditor Management Comments Status:
(Resolved
/Not
Resolved)

Timeframe

lnaccuracy in
Revenue from
Non-Exchange
Transactions

The statements of financial performance reflects
under Revenue from Non-Exchangc transactions
proceeds to be realized under Section 3 ofthe Air
Passengers Service Charge Act transfers of
Kshs. 1,181,698,150. However, the financial
stalements of Kenya Airports Authority for the
same period reflects an amount of
Kshs. I , 166,654,000 as transfer lo the Fund. The
variance of Kshs. 15, 044, 150 between the figures
has not been reconciled or explained

As per the findings, it's true, the statement of financial
perfomrance under Note 5 reflects Proceeds to be
realized under section 3 of the Air Passengers Service
Charge Act ofKshs. 1,181,698,150.
In response to this finding. Tourism Promotion Fund
Managernent wishes to slate that the variance was
caused by the difference in exchange rate being used by
the two entities to
Converl the proceeds remitted in dollars (The dollar
account conversion rate used by TPF was at the rate of
Kshs.l 15.00). However, the management has engaged
Kenya Airpons Authority to ensure the reconciliation of
the figures as advised to ensure uniformity in reporting.

Budgetary
Control and
Performance

The statement ofcomparison ofbudget and actual
amounts reflects approved revenue and
expenditure budget of Kshs.2,445,561,000.
However, the Fund incurred total expenditure of
Kshs.l,466,l I 5,000 or 60 % of the budget
resulting to an overall underutilization of
Kshs.979,446,000 or 40%.
The under expenditure affected the planned
activities by the Fund's Management and afIected
service delivery to citizens.

As per the audit findings, it's true the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects
approved revenue and expenditure budget of Kshs.2,
445,561,000. However, the Fund incurred total
expendilure of Kshs.l, 466,115.000 or 60 oZ of lhe
budget resulting to an overall underutilization of Kshs.
979,446,000 or 40Yo.

In response to this finding Tourism Promotion Fund
Management wishes to slate that it's true the

Not
Resolved

Resolve
with OAC
by 3 lst
November
2023

22
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Ref. No. on the
external audit
reporl
(oAGnPFt202
tno22t(3E)

Issue/Observations from Auditor Management Comments Status:
(Resolved
/Not
Resolved)

Timefrsme

Over
Expenditure on
Board Expenses

The statemenl of financial performance reflects
Board expenses amount of Kshs.6, 531,165..
However, the amounl, which is equivalent to 8 %
of operations and mai ntenance budget of Kshs.77,
369,000 exceeded the set limit of 5% as per the
Executive Office of the President circular No
OPICAB./9/IA, of I I March 2020 which caps
Board expenses to the lower ofKsh.30,000,000 or
50lo of operations and maintenance budget ol lhe
stte corporation.

In the circumstances, Managemenl was in breach
ofthe guidelines.

As per the Findings, its true Note 8 of board expenses
reflects an expenditure Kshs.6,531,165. However, this
amount was above 5Yo of operations and maintenance
budget contrary to the circular by 2o%.

In response to this finding, Tourism Promotion Fund
Management wishes to state thal
apart from the statutory meeting Allowances, the
expenditure included expenses on board allowances for
the special meetings held both by the oversight board,
and also the special rneetings by the three sub-
committees of the board (Project Management and
Resource Mobilization, Finance and Administration
Committee. and Audit and Risk Management
Committee) Secondly, there were Workshops held by
oversight board rnembers to analyze and evaluate
project proposals for funding considering, atnong the
f'unctions ofthe board

,l
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APPENDIX II: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY

TPF doesn't lmplement Projects, funds are disbursed to the Tourism

implements the projects.

APPENDIX III: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

lrnplementing Agencies who

Entity Name: Tourism Promotion Fund

Break down of Transfers from the Kenya Airports Authority

Revenue Receipts Bank Statement
Date

Amount Indicate the FY to
which the amounts

Relate(Kshs.)

Rcvenue Account

Kenya A irport
Authority

02.o8.2022 r44. r 73,339 2022t2023

2 02.02.2023 298.396.883 2022/2023

J 09.06.2023 80.580,544 2022/2023

4 r 5.06.2023 288.979.405 2022/2023

5

Kenya Airport
Authority

02.08.2022 3 r6.01 2.398 2022t2023

6 02.02.2023 4 r4,187.615 2072/2023

7 r9.05.2023 369.7 64.573 2022/2023

8 15.06.2023 1r 7,407,507 2022/2023

Grand Total 2,322,387,828

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry as well as

KAAr

-rvlisteph n nyanJu
Officer

CPA John Makona
Ag. Head of Finance

ICPAK. No. 17796

Chief Exec

Secretary to the Board

tr
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